Commerce City

7887 E. 60th Ave.
Commerce City, CO 80022
c3gov.com

Commerce

CITY

Meeting Minutes - Draft

Tuesday, June 6, 2023
6:00 PM

Meetings occur in person in the City Council Chambers (location
above). The public can watch meetings live at c3gov.com/Video or

CoYRUEAERE el B 7He TUBAYRIELBYVE G HBA WA d e
meeting wil h 55 8- SNRRENEABS SR FQRYiideo- Zoom

Registration:
https://c3gov.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_MLR-cZI6SmCLIRoUkka-FQ

Planning Commission




Planning Commission Meeting Minutes - Draft June 6, 2023

Call to Order
Meeting called to order 6:05 pm

Roll Call

Present 5- Commissioner Andrew Amador, Commissioner Debra Eggleston,
Commissioner Garret Biltoft, Commissioner Roger Japp, and Alternate
Commissioner Steven J. Douglas

Pledge of Allegience

Approval of Minutes:

Min 23-156 Planning Commission Draft Minutes

Attachments: PC Minutes 5 16 23

A motion was made by Commissioner Biltoft, seconded by Alternate
Commissioner Douglas, that this Minutes be approvedVOTE:

Ayes: 5- Commissioner Amador, Commissioner Eggleston, Commissioner Biltoft,
Commissioner Japp and Alternate Commissioner Douglas

Case(s):
Pres 23-377 Z-988-23: Kum & Go L.C.
Attachments: Zone Change Report
Ordinance
Vicinity Map

Applicant Narrative

Traffic Study Draft

Prelim Drainage Report

City attorney, Matt Hader, presented the case and the planner, Stacy Wasinger.
City Planner Stacy Wasinger presented the case.

The applicant Krista Houstens, 6471 E Florida Ave Denver, CO presented and spoke
how their proposal is in compliance with the city requirements.

Commissioner Douglas questioned how city will remain consistent.
They will not have charging ports.
Chairperson Amador had a question on convenience store sales. Staff noted that

convenience sales is not allowed but fuel sales is. There was further discussion on
the traffic study along Eudora and the concerns on big trucks.

Commerce City Page 1


https://commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9904
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2d88e8f1-5da1-4633-8c9c-d2c5fb7686ae.pdf
https://commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9905
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0549c67c-c2d5-4bce-add9-a1a6b2e49e14.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c06908bc-0717-4b59-ba00-274a41056791.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6a414cea-0692-457b-ac52-fa999ba7ed11.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9ed9e9e4-8d51-44f5-a813-a316e6a8f188.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6347bed7-a855-412f-8b98-1abd24ca8576.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=853d9a94-2259-47ad-b79a-88ce8032148a.pdf

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes - Draft June 6, 2023

Commissioner Japp had a similar question on the traffic study and asked if staff can
find a way to mitigate that intersection in the future. Ben Gonzalez, Public Works
Engineer, approached the podium and said this did not include a mitigation, he also
said that the north bound and south bound on 72nd ave., is a stop condition,
meaning that the traffic study that was delivered did not provide a low level service.
They said that the applicant can apply for a traffic variance.

Seeing no further comments, and no virtual comments, chairperson Amador asked
for a motion.

Chairperson Biltoft called for a motion: " | move that the Planning Commission
enter a finding that the requested Zone Change for the property located at 7160
Eudora Drive contained in case Z-988-23 meets the criteria of the Land
Development Code and based upon such finding, recommend that the City
Council approve the Zone Change."

Ayes: 4 - Commissioner Eggleston, Commissioner Biltoft, Commissioner Japp and
Alternate Commissioner Douglas

Nayes: 1- Commissioner Amador

Pres 23-378 S-740-19-23: Oakwood Homes Reunion Village 8 Filing No. 1 Final
Plat

Attachments: Subdivision Report

Resolution
Vicinity Map
Applicant Narrative

Final Plat

Development Agreement

Final Drainage Report

Traffic Report

Approved Traffic Variance

Referral Agency Comments

Deputy City Attorney called the case and introduced the planner Jennifer Jones.
Asked that they bring the applicant forward for a hearing.

Jeff Mark , Terracina Design, on behalf of Oakwood asked for a continuance of the
case. Hader asked for a motion to be held on a particular date. Called for Jim Hayes
and he also requested July 05th. Matt Hader wanted to state on record that they are
trying to come up with a date so that the burden doesn't fall on the applicant again.
Seeing that the board is split on availability if they can hold a quorum, they called for
a recess at 6:47 to contact additional commissioners.

Chairperson Amador asked to be amended as August 01, 2023 to be the
continuance date. Jim Hayes accepted. A motion was called by Chairperson Amador.

Biltoft made a motion to "continue the case $-740-19-2 in August 01, 2023"

Ayes: 5- Commissioner Amador, Commissioner Eggleston, Commissioner Biltoft,
Commissioner Japp and Alternate Commissioner Douglas

Commerce City Page 2


https://commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9906
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ad4c0dde-dc4f-4d47-9fc0-50f15c22dd5a.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3f0226e2-14b4-42af-a14a-d5166834a88b.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=08492646-36c4-4017-9c28-2a8d19dedcf6.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1d5fd031-e297-4689-bf05-f9adb7b9299f.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=314d053a-edb1-471b-a953-7b839a72846a.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=be40d546-82a4-4d46-9e92-387f69dfd42c.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=eb314d3a-604e-4ee3-8422-2a5a388a1d58.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1e8eecda-3453-478a-acfc-f37957da4678.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7ade131e-07af-4905-8f37-61fb56ad8cc1.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0102a1f4-5a6e-480b-af0f-02b2667e2e9c.pdf

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes - Draft June 6, 2023

Pres 23-379 S-778-20-23: Oakwood Homes Reunion Ridge Filing No. 2
Attachments: Subdivision Report
Resolution
Vicinity Map

Applicant Narrative

Development Agreement

Final Plat

Final Drainage Report

Traffic Letter

Referral Agency Comments

Deputy City Attorney introduced the case and Planner Mike Rosso presented the
case.

Rosso presented the case. Chairperson thanked staff and asked invited

Jeff Mark Terracina Design E George Ave., Denver, CO 80221 presented on Filing 2
and Filing 3.

Chairperson asked if the board had any questions. Chairperson Douglas asked if the
width of the streets met city standards, which are visible on the plat itself and asked if
there are drainage improvements on 96th. Planning Manager informed the board that
there are standards that the applicant has to meet.

Chairperson thanked Oakwood and staff with the thought of the network of the roads
and the amount of parking then asked if there were any public or virtual comments.

Seeing none, Chairperson asked for a motion.

Board member Eggleston motioned: " | move that the Planning Commission enter
a finding that the requested

Reunion Ridge Filing No. 2 and Filing No. 3 Final Plats contained in cases
S$-778-20-23 meet the criteria of the Land Development Code and based upon
such finding, recommend that the City Council approve the Final Plats.”

Ayes: 4 - Commissioner Amador, Commissioner Eggleston, Commissioner Biltoft
and Commissioner Japp

Nayes: 1- Alternate Commissioner Douglas

Pres 23-380 S-810-21-23: Oakwood Homes Reunion Ridge Filing No. 3

Commerce City Page 3


https://commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9907
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e77cb459-aae4-41c5-8271-3a556adc54c8.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=08c3674f-7a89-4087-a1de-4c92206d76ac.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5d6c5eda-b775-46cb-9a77-831aca542238.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dc97c980-c0d3-4adf-8d57-2795ecedbfd2.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e5155f46-1c3a-4347-9e79-0d800b4f52cb.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cecd69b2-0de0-4c48-872b-728f0bfc95de.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b095956c-b21d-448e-9c5f-7fb67c12e017.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=94db468a-8ec0-47c6-b3a8-723b3ece950e.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ffda9608-e8dd-48b3-b893-1085bfaa8633.pdf
https://commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=9908

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes - Draft June 6, 2023

Attachments: Subdivision Report

Resolution
Vicinity Map
Applicant Narrative

Final Plat

Development Agreement

Final Drainage Report

Traffic Letter

Referral Agency Comments

Deputy City Attorney introduced the case and Planner Mike Rosso presented the
case.

Rosso presented the case. Chairperson thanked staff and asked invited

Jeff Mark Terracina Design E George Ave., Denver, CO 80221 presented on Filing 2
and Filing 3.

Chairperson asked if the board had any questions. Chairperson Douglas asked if the
width of the streets met city standards, which are visible on the plat itself and asked if
there are drainage improvements on 96th. Planning Manager informed the board that
there are standards that the applicant has to meet.

Chairperson thanked Oakwood and staff with the thought of the network of the roads
and the amount of parking then asked if there were any public or virtual comments.

Seeing none, Chairperson asked for a motion.

Board member Eggleston motioned: "I move that the Planning Commission enter
a finding that the requested

Reunion Ridge Filing No. 2 and Filing No. 3 Final Plats contained in cases
S$-810-21-23 meet the criteria of the Land Development Code and based upon
such finding, recommend that the City Council approve the Final Plats."

Ayes: 5- Commissioner Amador, Commissioner Eggleston, Commissioner Biltoft,
Commissioner Japp and Alternate Commissioner Douglas

Board Business:
Biltoft requested PUD documents to be included with the case files to be a part of

the packet and how the case references to the PUD.

Attorney Business:

None

Staff Business:

Staff asked commissioners if they would be available for a July 5th meeting and if they
would like a study session mid July for the Comp Plan, in addition to the joint council

Commerce City Page 4


https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=aad4c1a5-4c3b-43ac-8f09-a003488f3822.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b14fed67-ea5e-4bf6-8573-7d0ea1dd191d.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c782f245-e274-4c92-a7d6-6efc9c119ad9.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1c0c6883-234c-462c-b93b-e045bcef2d1b.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b81b45f0-a054-46bd-88ef-818d582cbe94.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=31533ce2-ff2d-4c5f-97ca-cbbabdc440c8.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=69556c4a-388b-46d9-bc1d-c564b6402c54.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8875988b-f57b-4607-b05d-4233a1ff7e8b.pdf
https://Commerce.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=498be949-3427-4e7f-9da8-a155cd082e0f.pdf

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes - Draft June 6, 2023

study session meeting. Staff announced that Commissioner Cammack was pointed
out as a Planning Commissioner on Monday, June 05th.

Douglas called for a motion to cancel the July 05th meeting. 5 aye 0 nay

Chairperson Amador concluded the meeting 7:37pm
Adjournment

Commerce City Page 5



